JOURNAL OF COMMISSION WORK SESSION July 5, 2017

City Commission Work Session Civic Center, Gibson Room 212 Mayor Kelly presiding

CITY COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT: Bob Kelly, Bill Bronson, Bob Jones, Tracy Houck and Fred Burow.

STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Greg Doyon, and Deputy City Manager Chuck Anderson; Assistant City Attorney Joe Cik; Fiscal Services Director Melissa Kinzler; Public Works Engineer Dave Dobbs; Fire Chief Steve Hester, and Assistant Fire Chief Ron Scott; and, Deputy City Clerk Darcy Dea.

** Action Minutes of the Great Falls City Commission. Please refer to the <u>audio/video recording</u> of this meeting for additional detail. **

1. CALL TO ORDER: 5:30 p.m.

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

Charles Bocock, 51 Prospect Drive, expressed appreciation for putting Resolution 10198 on the election ballot.

Cheryl Reichert, 51 Prospect Drive, thanked the Commission for its initiative with regard to Resolution 10198 being a Referendum on the election ballot.

Ron Gessaman, 1006 36th Avenue NE, expressed appreciation with regard to Resolution 10198.

3. <u>RESOLUTION REGARDING CHICKENS ON THE GENERAL ELECTION</u> BALLOT

Assistant City Attorney Joe Cik reported that the results of the election ballots would be in effect the day that they are certified by the Elections Office, and that Ordinance 3165 would be presented to the Commission. He commented that any interested parties could contact the City Attorney's office for input into the proposed code changes. Assistant City Attorney Cik noted that Exhibit A outlines what would be in Title 6, Chapter 3 of the Official Code of the City of Great Falls (OCCGF). There would be a permitting process which would allow up to four domestic hens per permit, and further explained that the violations of any of the provisions could be a misdemeanor.

He suggested that any interested parties should contact the City Attorney's Office for input with regard to the proposed code changes.

Commissioner Burow received clarification with regard to the number of chickens allowed per permit.

Mayor Kelly inquired what the timeline would be for interested parties to provide input to the proposed code changes. Assistant City Attorney Cik responded that input should be no later than August 14th.

Manager Doyon received clarification that the Commission would need to adopt any regulations that would go along with Resolution 10198 through the Ordinance process.

4. 2018 PROPOSED BUDGET

City Manager Greg Doyon provided and reviewed the attached PowerPoint presentation that included the budget process, Commission priorities, Fire Inspector analysis, FY 2018 budget highlights, capital improvements, proposed user fee adjustments, budget overview for FY 2018, general fund new tax revenue, voted and non voted debt capacity, and City Manager budget recap.

With regard to the Fire Inspector position, Commissioner Jones supports moving forward, and commented that it would free up an engine company to allow for quicker response times for Fire Station 1.

In response to Mayor Kelly's inquiry regarding the history of increasing fees, Fire Chief Steve Hester responded that the last Safety Inspection Certificate (SIC) increase was in 2007.

Commissioner Houck inquired about the cost of SIC's in other cities. Chief Hester responded that it is hard to compare since Great Falls is one of the few communities that does SIC's upon a business license.

Manager Doyon commented that conversations were started but no recommendation was made with regard to the financial implications of moving the SIC program under the Fire Department. Chief Hester responded that the Fire Department and Planning and Community Development need to discuss what the work load would be.

Referring to the funding for fire prevention a couple years ago, Manager Doyon commented that having someone focused on performing SIC's would be a way to help curb the calls. Fiscal Services Director Melissa Kinzler responded that a Deputy Fire Marshall was hired at that time.

Commissioner Jones referred to Calumet and commented the City should provide additional firemen in response to alleviating some of the responsibilities from an engine company to do the inspections.

Director Kinzler referred to the above and beyond sheet, and commented that there is funding for the fire and police departments.

Commissioner Houck expressed concern with regard to the Fire Department response time lagging since they are not responding to fire calls only. She further expressed concern with regard to the time that it would take to hire a Fire Inspector once the budget is approved.

Manager Doyon explained that reallocating some of the recommended proposals would be a way of funding for the position now.

Commissioner Bronson commented that the Commission should continue to explore options until the hearing. He further pointed out that he is not interested in cutting back with regard to public safety.

Commissioner Burow commented that firemen that perform SIC's become familiar with buildings and he expressed concern that issues with a building could be missed if they stop going into buildings. He further expressed concern with regard to the types of calls that the Fire Department goes on.

Mayor Kelly indicated that continuing in the same direction in order to come up with a way to fund the Fire Inspector position needed to be done.

Manager Doyon commented that the last large amount of revenues received was in 2010 and further commented that there is a need to be cautious with regard to the amount of money to be utilized.

Fiscal Services Director Kinzler reported that there would be boulevard assessment increases with regard to the street lighting districts.

Commissioner Jones inquired about the amount of the actual cost of one of the boulevard increases. Fiscal Services Director Kinzler responded that she would get back to him with the amount.

Fiscal Services Director Kinzler reported that Revenue Bonds are not a part of the debt capacity.

Commissioner Burow referred to the voted and non voted debt capacity PowerPoint slide, and received clarification with regard to the Unused General Obligation Debt Capacity being used for the Civic Center Façade.

Manager Doyon discussed next steps. He indicated that there is a need to fund the Fire Inspector position. Manager Doyon asked the Commission if they had any questions.

Mayor Kelly responded that the Commission will continue to discuss and would report back to City staff with any further questions.

Manager Doyon asked City staff if they had any questions.

Assistant Fire Chief Ron Scott commented that the Fire Inspector position would help alleviate some of concerns that have been discussed.

5. DISCUSSION OF POTENTIAL UPCOMING WORK SESSION TOPICS

Mayor Kelly reported that the next work session will consist of Marsy's Law. Manager Doyon requested the issue with regard to the Flight Service Center be added as well as the River's Edge Trail. Commissioner Houck requested a status report with regard to the golf courses be added to a future work session. No one objected.

ADJOURN

There being no further discussion, Mayor Kelly adjourned the informal work session of July 5, 2017, at 6:19 p.m.























